
 
Traffic Safety Committee 06-20-19  1  

 

TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  
THURSDAY, JUNE 20, 2019, 8:00AM 

SELECTBOARD MEETING ROOM, MUNICIPAL CENTER 
MINUTES 

 
Members present:  Town Manager Peter Elwell, Police Chief Mike Fitzgerald, Public Works Director Steve 
Barrett, Planning Director Sue Fillion, Chamber of Commerce Representative Deb Bunker, Citizen 
Representative Louise Zak, and School Representative Alice Charkes.   
 
Selectboard Representative:  Tim Wessel. 
 
Other staff members present:  Josh Carnes (DPW Engineering Tech) and Dan Tyler (DPW Highway/Utilities 
Superintendent). 
 
Others present:  Sandra Cunningham, Mollie Burke, Barbara Rouleau, Christian Stromberg, Prudence 
MacKinney, Shyla Foss, and others who did not sign the attendance sheet. 
 
Town Manager Elwell called the meeting to order at 8:00am.   
 
Approve Minutes – April 18, 2019 

Elwell asked the committee to approve the minutes from the April 18 meeting.  There was no discussion. 

MOTION BY LOUISE ZAK, AND SECONDED BY STEVE BARRETT, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES 
FROM APRIL 18.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Public Participation 
 
Christian Stromberg spoke of safety concerns for pedestrians crossing Bridge 54 (located on Route 9 by 
Melrose Street).  He said that the bridge contained a sidewalk on only one side, that it was dangerously 
elevated, and did not have a handrail or guardrail.  Public Works Director Barrett noted that the bridge was 
under the jurisdiction of the State Agency of Transportation (VTrans) and this committee had heard safety 
concerns on several past occasions.  He provided some history of the bridge and handrail deterioration and 
said that VTrans had the bridge on its replacement list.  Mollie Burke, State Representative, said that she 
had spoken with representatives from VTrans, that the bridge was structurally sound, and that VTrans may 
add replacement of the bridge to next year’s budget and project lists.  She offered to organize a meeting with 
representatives from VTrans, Brattleboro, Marlboro, and Wilmington to address truck traffic and safety on 
Route 9.  Charkes offered suggestions for alternative safety measures and asked that the matter be 
addressed by the committee in the future.  There was much discussion by committee members and others.  
Elwell said that staff would look into the possibility of installing handrails between the sidewalk and roadway 
and that this matter would be added to the August 15 agenda. 

Christian Stromberg requested that a crosswalk and pedestrian lights be installed on Putney Road at the 
Hannaford Plaza intersection.  He said that he recently moved his business to Putney Road and some 
personnel routinely crossed Putney Road on foot to get lunch.  He noted that VTrans was working on 
improvement plans to Putney Road, but those improvements were years away and the safety concerns were 
present-day.  He said he understood the cost to install a pedestrian crossing light at that intersection to be 
about $10,000, and he asked that VTrans be pushed to address safety concerns and install the lights.  Elwell 
said that this committee had discussed pedestrian safety on Putney Road in the past and about a year ago 
he had communications with VTrans representatives who provided some limited temporary pedestrian/bike 
improvements on the hill by the Marina.  At that time, VTrans declined to install a crosswalk at the top of the 
hill by NECCA.  He suggested inviting VTrans to a future meeting to discuss the matter.  Mollie Burke spoke 
of “tactical urbanism” where short-term actions were implemented in a long-range plan and she provided 
some suggestions, such as restriping the roadway and lowering the speed limit so that crosswalks could be 
painted on the roadway.  She said that she had a meeting later in the day with a VTrans representative and 
she would discuss this matter and explore whether any interim solutions were available.  Wessel suggested 
that the Town split the $10,000 cost of installing a pedestrian crossing light.  Police Chief Fitzgerald reported 
that within the past twelve months, 143 vehicle accidents were reported with 1 pedestrian accident (the 
pedestrian accident took place on the side of the road, not crossing).  He said that VTrans would consider 



 
Traffic Safety Committee 06-20-19  2  

 

the accident data when asked to make changes to the roadway and those accident numbers were low.  
There was much discussion by the committee, including insisting that VTrans act sooner.  Elwell said that 
staff would look further at the matter and add it to the August 15 agenda. 

Monthly Report on Pedestrian and Bicycle Incidents – Police Chief Mike Fitzgerald reported that since the 
last meeting, 57 motor vehicle accidents were reported with no personal injuries,  6 accidents with minor 
personal injuries, and none involving pedestrians or bicycles.  There was no discussion. 

Monthly Report on Traffic Data Collection – Josh Carnes, Engineering Technician from Public Works, spoke 
about the data collected on South Main Street (near Sunny Acres Road), Clark Avenue, John Seitz Drive, 
Sunset Lake Road, Black Mountain Road (near the I-91 overpass), Putney Road (near Eaton Avenue), and 
Marlboro Road (near Edwards Heights), all as set forth in his memo dated June 6, 2019.  There was much 
discussion by the committee. 

Street and Sidewalk Safety Policy Safety Action Requests  
(a) Update re: Possible Bike Lanes on Western Avenue – Discussions with VTrans and Plans to  
  Apply for Planning Grant 
(b) Request to Add Bike/Walking Lane along John Seitz Drive (Continued Discussion) 
(c) Traffic Flow Concerns on Green Street (Continued Discussion) 
(d) Maple Street and Intersection at Canal Street -  
  (i)    Line Striping at Intersection - DPW 
  (ii)   Tractor Trailer Truck Traffic – Possible Additional WRC Traffic Survey 
(e)  Visibility/Parking Near Little League Field at Intersection of Oak Grove Avenue and  
  South Main Street  
(f) Request to Change Parking Meters on Grove Street from 30 Minutes to 2 Hours 
(g) Request to Add Fog Lines on Williams Street 

(a) Elwell said that he recently met with representatives from VTrans who supported the idea of 
installing bike lanes on Western Avenue and suggested that the Town apply for a VTrans grant to study the 
matter and provide engineering work.  He said that the Selectboard approved applying for the grant and the 
matter would be brought back to this committee after he received a decision about the grant.  There was no 
discussion. 
 
(b) Barrett noted that speed data on John Seitz Drive was included in the data reported earlier in the 
meeting.  He said that the road was wide enough to add fog lines along the side of the road for pedestrians 
and bicycles and that staff supported doing so.   He said that the striping could be added now while other 
streets were being striped.  There was no discussion. 

(c) Fitzgerald said that he and Chief Bucossi visited Green Street School and monitored the street traffic 
one afternoon and the following morning in April.  He acknowledged that it was normal for traffic to slow 
when drivers witnessed two officials in uniform standing on the street and, consequently, they did not witness 
the excessive speed reported in a previous Safety Action Request.  He noted that the amount of traffic was 
intense and chaotic during drop-off and pick-up of the students.  He said that the signage should be reviewed 
and cleaned up because there were signs with conflicting messages, such as “no parking” and “parallel 
parking only.”  He also said that the one-way barricades and signs were not installed or removed at regular 
times so it could be confusing for drivers.  He expressed concerns about students exiting cars on the left side 
into the traffic lanes and suggested that the police take a more active role in monitoring the situation and that 
the school communicate best practices and safety procedures with the parents.  Barbara Rouleau, a resident 
on Green Street, reported that traffic was often speeding on the street.  There was much discussion by the 
committee about the traffic and safety concerns at the drop-off and pick-up times.  Charkes offered to 
communicate with Principal Speno and assist in preparing notices for parents and students.  Fitzgerald said 
that more police presence would be scheduled during those times and the officers could speak with the 
drivers and students at the time that unsafe practices were taking place.  Elwell asked Fitzgerald for a report 
to give to the committee when the signage and the one-way procedures were finalized, and the matter would 
be added to a future agenda.   

(d) Barrett said that members of Public Works reviewed the line striping on Maple Street at the 
intersection with Canal Street, as requested in the first part of the Safety Action Request Form, and agreed 
that the center line should be adjusted to reflect a single exit lane which would improve sight distances at the 



 
Traffic Safety Committee 06-20-19  3  

 

intersection.  He addressed the second concern on the Safety Request Form and said that Brattleboro 
Memorial Hospital had performed traffic studies and the truck traffic on Maple Street as part of its expansion 
project of the hospital building.  He said that he did not agree that further studies were required.  Sandra 
Cunningham suggested adding a sign to the Maple Street intersection advising drivers of the single lane 
approaching the intersection.  She also spoke about the amount truck traffic on Maple Street and the size of 
the trucks that serviced the hospital.  She requested a traffic study from Canal Street to Southern Avenue in 
order to determine the amount of tractor-trailer trucks on the street.  She said that the trucks negatively affect 
the neighborhood, road, and sewer lines.  She said that the trucks were making deliveries as early as 
5:00am.  Barrett said that overweight trucks had been permitted on Maple Street for many years so trucks 
would avoid using other smaller side streets.  Planning Director Sue Fillion spoke about the traffic studies 
that had taken place in connection with the hospital’s reconstruction project and Act 250 application.  She 
said that the Windham Regional Commission had performed traffic studies, including the number of axels on 
trucks, in connection with the hospital expansion project.  Barrett confirmed that traffic studies were 
performed on Maple Street near the Thompson House.  Elwell summarized that the traffic may be annoying 
to the neighbors, but staff did not recommend performing an additional traffic study.  He said that the Act 250 
process would address some of Cunningham’s concerns which were not within the purview of this 
committee.  The committee did not take any action. 

(e) Dan Tyler, Highway/Utilities Superintendent, spoke about a Safety Action Request Form received 
with complaints about the visibility and parking near the intersection of South Main Street and Oak Grove 
Avenue during Little League games.  He said that proper signage was not present so vehicles parked in 
places that obstructed views.  He suggested installing better signs and hatching the pavement with “no 
parking” areas.  Elwell said that staff would make changes as requested.  There was no discussion.  No 
action was taken. 

(f) Elwell said that a request had been received to change the two westernmost metered parking spots 
in front of 15 Grove Street from 30-minute parking to 2-hour parking, as set forth in his memo dated June 11.  
He said that after reviewing the parking situation in that area, staff recommended the change and, if the 
committee agreed, the matter would go to the Selectboard for an ordinance amendment.  There was no 
discussion. 

MOTION BY DEB BUNKER, AND SECONDED BY ALICE CHARKES, TO CHANGE THE LAST TWO 
METERS ON GROVE STREET TO 2-HOUR PARKING.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

(g) Tyler said that a request had been received to paint fog lines on Williams Street to create a shoulder 
for bicyclists.  He said that Williams Street was limited in width and placing fog lines with the appropriate lane 
width would result in a very narrow shoulder and would create other safety hazards.  He suggested that a 
shared lane marking could be added to the road to alert drivers to the possibility of cyclists, as set forth in his 
mamo dated June 3.  Charkes concurred that the markings would be beneficial to bicyclists.  There was no 
discussion by the committee.  Elwell said that staff would add the markings. 

Other Business – Informational Items 
(a) Update re: Handicapped Parking Space on the East Side of Main Street 
(b) Potential Crosswalk with RRFB from Retreat Farm to Retreat Meadows “Boat Ramp” 
(c) Other 

(a) Elwell confirmed that the Selectboard had approved the committee’s request to add a handicapped 
parking space on the east side of Main Street in front of Gallery in the Woods.  He said that it would require 
an ordinance amendment and the amendment would become final in late July. 

(b) Elwell said that the Retreat Farm requested that the Town consider installation of a crosswalk 
between the Retreat Farm and the “boat ramp” on the Retreat Meadow on Route 30 and then install a RRFB 
(Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons) for pedestrians to safely cross the road.  He said that he met with 
members from VTrans in May and discussed the possibility.  He said that such a project carried several 
considerations, including it being a State highway in an unusual spot that was a considerably wide road, 
contained 4-season recreational activities, and would require substantial engineering work and re-
construction of the road.  He said that VTrans would require that the Town take jurisdiction of the road which 
would become a capital improvement project and would need to be budgeted.  It would include 



 
Traffic Safety Committee 06-20-19  4  

 

reconstruction of the road, long-term maintenance, installation of sidewalks, and extending the winter 
seasonal maintenance.  He said that although it was not a top priority, the discussions would likely continue.   

 (c) Charkes asked for an update on the Vermont Country Deli project at the intersection of Williams 
Street and Western Avenue.  Barrett responded that the engineer who had been working on the project 
retired and had not yet been replaced.  He suggested that a concept plan may be ready by September and 
then would be followed with negotiations with property owners, meetings with the business owner, and the 
scheduling of several public meetings.   

Charkes also asked that staff contact VTrans and request that the bike lanes on Putney Road from 
Black Mountain Road to Hannaford Plaza be restriped.  She said that some lines were missing and some 
were very faint.  Elwell said that he would contact VTrans and request the restriping of the bike lanes and 
installing the delineators on Putney Road at the hill by the Marina. 

There was no further business. 

ELWELL ADJOURNED THE MEETING AT 9:50AM.   


